INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION for MEDIA & COMMUNICATION RESEARCH

ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONALE des ETUDES et RECHERCHES sur L'INFORMATION et la COMMUNICATION

ASOCIACION INTERNACIONAL de ESTUDIOS en COMUNICACION SOCIAL

STANDING ORDERS (BY-LAWS) ADOPTED AT IAMCR GENERAL ASSEMBLY 1992 (Revision July 2016)

1. GENERAL

- 1.1. These Standing Orders (By-Laws) may be altered by a simple majority of the General Assembly, except to contradict the Statutes.
- 1.2. A Standing Order may be suspended either by the provisions of an existing Statute or by a two-thirds majority of the General Assembly.

2. SESSIONS OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

- 2.1. Subject to Article 5 of the Statutes, the General Assembly shall decide the date and place of its next meeting.
- 2.2. The President, in consultation with the Executive Board, shall decide the date and place of any extra-ordinary meeting of the General Assembly.
- 2.3. An extra-ordinary meeting of the General Assembly, requisitioned under S5.7 of the Statutes, shall be held within 120 days of the receipt of the necessary requisition.

3. ADJOURNMENT OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

3.1. The General Assembly may decide by simple majority to adjourn its session temporarily and resume at a date and time to be set.

4. AGENDA

- 4.1. The provisional agenda for the General Assembly shall be submitted to the members immediately following the meeting of the International Council that prepares it. Any member may request the inclusion of supplementary items, which shall be included. The General Assembly shall then approve the revised agenda before proceeding to its business.
- 4.2. The President, in consultation with the Executive Board, shall prepare the agenda for any extra-ordinary meeting of the General Assembly called under Article 5 of the Statutes. The provisional agenda shall be circulated to all members attending the extra-ordinary meeting, prior to its opening. Any member attending may request the addition of supplementary items to the provisional agenda, which shall be included. The agenda shall be approved before the meeting proceeds to its business.

5. CHAIR OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

- 5.1. Subject to S8.1 of the Statutes, the President shall chair all meetings of the General Assembly. At the beginning of any session of the General Assembly, the Chair shall nominate a member to act as Vice-Chair and shall call for similar nominations from the floor. The Assembly shall elect the Vice-Chair of the meeting by simple majority.
- 5.2. The Chair shall declare the opening and closing of the General Assembly, shall direct the discussion, ensure observance of the Standing Orders and generally maintain order in the meeting, put questions to the vote and announce decisions.
- 5.3. If the President vacates the Chair during any part of a session, the Vice-Chair shall take over and shall have the same powers and responsibilities as the Chair.

6. QUORUM

- 6.1. Subject to Article 5 of the Statutes, the quorum for a meeting of the General Assembly shall be ninety (90) members.
- 6.2. In the event that a meeting of the General Assembly is not quorate, the meeting shall decide by simple majority whether to proceed. If the meeting proceeds, it shall submit its report to the next regular meeting of the General Assembly, which shall decide whether to endorse its decisions.
- 6.3. Decisions of the General Assembly shall not come into force until a fully quorate meeting approves them.

7. RULES OF DEBATE

7.1. Speakers

- 7.1.1. Recognition of Speakers: the chair shall call speakers in the order in which they signify their wish to speak.
- 7.1.2. Limit of Time: The chair may limit the time to be allowed each speaker, subject to a negative motion from the floor
- 7.1.3. List of Speakers: the chair may, during the course of a debate, announce the list of speakers and declare the list closed; a right of reply may, though, be accorded after the closure of the list, if desirable.

7.2. Motions

- 7.2.1. The proponent shall use the word "move" to introduce any proposal for action that s/he wishes the General Assembly to adopt. Motions should be introduced in the form of resolutions. Complex proposals should be introduced in writing.
- 7.2.2. All motions must be seconded by at least one member other than the proponent. In the absence of a seconder, the motion shall lapse and the Chair shall move the meeting to the next item of business.
- 7.2.3. The seconder shall be under no obligation to support the motion. Seconding requires only that the seconder wishes to see the matter discussed and adjudicated upon by the General Assembly.
- 7.2.4. All motions shall be recorded in the minutes of the General Assembly whether they proceed or lapse.
- 7.2.5. The Chair shall bring a motion formally to the attention of the General Assembly by repeating it in detail and stating the question implicit in it. Alternatively, the Chair may rule the motion out of order on the basis that the motion:
 - 7.2.5.1. violates one or more Statutes,
 - 7.2.5.2. presents again a matter already rejected by the General Assembly,
 - 7.2.5.3. conflicts with matters already temporarily suspended, or
 - 7.2.5.4. proposes actions outside the constitutional power of the General Assembly.
- 7.2.6. The proponent of the motion may, at this point and with the agreement of their seconder, modify or withdraw the motion. Subsequently in the debate, the proponent may only modify or withdraw a motion with the consent of the General Assembly.
- 7.2.7. Any member of the General Assembly may ask the proponent to accept an amendment of the motion and the proponent may accept that amendment. If the proponent accepts, the original seconder may either concur or withdraw, in which case the author of the amendment becomes the seconder of the motion put to the Assembly.
- 7.2.8. If the Chair expects general support for the motion, s/he may propose the adoption of the motion by unanimous consent. If, however, there is any objection to this course of action, the Chair must restate the question to be put and allow for debate.
- 7.2.9. The first speaker in any debate on a motion shall be the proponent of the motion, who shall also have a right of reply at the end of the debate before the motion is put to a vote.

- 7.2.10. The second speaker in any debate shall be the seconder of the motion who shall have no subsequent right of reply.
- 7.2.11. The Chair shall call subsequent speakers in the order in which they signal their wish to speak, at the same time seeking to balance and alternate speakers for and against the motion.
- 7.2.12. The Chair may limit the time allowed to each speaker, subject to the will of the meeting.
- 7.2.13. The Chair may, during the debate on a particular item, accept one of a number of subsidiary motions, including:
 - 7.2.13.1. an amendment to the motion under discussion, in which case the amendment shall be moved, seconded and voted on first and the amended motion, if needs be, voted on second. In the event that several amendments are received, the amendment that is, in the judgement of the Chair, furthest from the substance of the motion shall be dealt with first. Once a motion is amended, that shall be the motion to be voted on by the Assembly.
 - 7.2.13.2. privileged motions, which shall take precedence in the following order over all other motions before the General Assembly:
 - 7.2.13.2.1. to call for orders of the day,
 - 7.2.13.2.2. to suspend the session,
 - 7.2.13.2.3. to adjourn the session,
 - 7.2.13.2.4. to adjourn debate on the item under discussion,
 - 7.2.13.2.5. to close the debate on the item under discussion,
 - 7.2.13.2.6. to fix the time to which to adjourn.
 - 7.2.13.3. incidental motions. A point of order may be put during the course of a debate and decided by the Chair, subject to the will of the meeting. In the event that a member of the Assembly dissents from the ruling of the Chair, the issue shall be put to an immediate vote of the Assembly and decided by simple majority.
- 7.2.14. The Chair shall give notice of and shall announce the conclusion of the debate on any particular item.

7.3. Resolution

- 7.3.1. The Chair, at the conclusion of debate on an issue, shall confirm that the Assembly understands the issue to be decided and shall, if necessary, clarify the question before the Assembly.
- 7.3.2. The Chair shall put the question to the vote and the Assembly shall vote on the voices or by a show of hands.
- 7.3.3. Subject to Section 5 of the Statutes, the General Assembly shall decide issues by simple majority.
- 7.3.4. The Chair shall announce and the Secretary shall record the decisions of the General Assembly.

8. NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

- 8.1. Subject to Articles 6, 7 and 8 of the Statutes, an Election Committee of three members shall be appointed by the International Council two years preceding the vote to manage the whole election process, from calling for candidates to counting the votes and announcing the results. The committee shall seek to encourage candidates to express their positions and engage in dialogue among themselves and with the membership as appropriate.
- 8.2. The Election Committee shall call for candidates at least 150 days before the required General Assembly of the Association.
- 8.3. Executive Board

- 8.3.1. Each candidate to the Executive Board must be a paid-up member of the Association and be sponsored by a minimum of five (5) paid-up members from at least two (2) different countries.
- 8.3.2. Each candidate shall send to the chair of the election committee a confirmation of their candidacy and an election statement that conforms to the guidelines established by the election committee. Both documents should be sent electronically at least 120 days before the relevant session of the General Assembly.
- 8.3.3. Candidates may nominate for one or more positions on the Executive Board and, if they wish, for membership of the International Council.
- 8.3.4. Candidates for election to both the Executive Board and the International Council shall, if successful in the former, be automatically removed from the latter.
- 8.3.5. The Election Committee will validate the list of candidates. The committee will ensure that the list of candidates and their statements are made available to the members, will provide guidelines to the candidates for the election campaigns and will inform them about election procedures.
- 8.3.6. An electronic voting procedure proposed by the incumbent Executive Board and approved by the Election Committee no later than 150 days before the relevant General Assembly will be enforced for the coming election and disseminated to the paid up members of IAMCR. The same procedure will be applied for each election, with or without changes to the electronic voting procedure.

9. STANDING ORDERS FOR INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL

- 9.1. Subject to Article 6 of the Statutes, the International Council shall adopt standing orders for its operation. These standing orders shall be adopted by simple majority of the Council and may be modified or suspended by a two-thirds majority of the Council, provided that they do not contradict the Statutes.
- 9.2. Subject to Article 6 of the Statutes, the quorum for a meeting of the International Council shall be fifteen (15) members, including at least five (5) Section Heads and five (5) directly elected Council members.
- 9.3. In the event that a meeting of the International Council is not quorate, the meeting shall decide by simple majority whether to proceed. If the meeting proceeds, it shall submit its report to the next regular meeting of the General Assembly, which shall decide whether to endorse its decisions.
- 9.4. Decisions of the International Council shall not come into force until a fully quorate General Assembly meeting approves them.
- 9.5. The Standing Orders for rules of debates of the International Council shall be the same as those for meetings of the General Assembly as described in 7. above.
- 9.6. Committees of the International Council shall be established on the basis of proposals from the President or any other member and endorsed by a majority of the Council. The members of council committees, including their chairs, may be members of the council or appointed by the council among the membership at large. Committees shall report their activities to each meeting of the Council.
 - 9.6.1. The Committees of the International Council are divided in two categories: the Standing Committees, which are continuously needed to run the organization and the Ad hoc Committees appointed for all other purposes, which may be named Committees or Task Forces.
 - 9.6.2. The Standing Committees are:
 - Conference Committee
 - Election Committee (with the special provisions of article 8.1)
 - Environmental Impact Committee
 - Finance Committee
 - Legal Committee
 - Membership Committee

- Publications Committee
- Scholarly Review Committee
- 9.6.3. Each Standing Committee is presided by a Chair, with a mandate of 4 years, renewable at will. The Chair is elected by the IC by simple majority. In the eventuality of an electronic voting between the IC meetings, the Chair will be elected after a call for candidacies giving a period of 30 days for any questions before the electronic voting. The Chair proposes a committee membership list to the IC who votes on the list by simple majority. The mandate of members is also renewable at will.
- 9.6.4. The Ad hoc Committees are set up for special purposes for up to 4 years, but may be renewable. Their establishment is based on a proposal from the President or any other member of the IC and endorsed by a majority vote of the International Council.
- 9.6.5. Each Ad hoc Committee is presided by a Chair elected by the IC by simple majority. In the eventuality of an electronic voting between the IC meetings, the Chair will be elected after a call for candidacies giving a period of 30 days for any questions before the electronic voting. The other members of the Standing Committees are appointed by the IC or later electronically by the IC. The duration of the mandate of the Chair and members of the Ad hoc Committees coincides with its duration.
- 9.6.6. The members of all Committees, including their Chairs, may be members of the IC in accordance of article 9.7 below or chosen among the IAMCR membership at large. All members of the Committees (Standing and Ad Hoc) must be IAMCR members, either directly, or through an IAMCR institutional member who has listed them among its IAMCR beneficiaries. The IAMCR Executive Board will systematically check whether Committee members are in good standing and their election will be voided if they don't immediately comply with the Executive Board's (late) dues payment request within a month.
- 9.6.7. The Chairs shall report the activities of their Committee to each annual meeting of the IC.
- 9.7. Each member of the International Council who is not Chair or Co-Chair of a Section or a Working Group nor an EB member must be part of one of the IC Committee at least and three at the most.

Janet Wasko President Philippe J. Maarek Chair of the Legal Committee